
Harbor Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
Tuesday, September 16, 2014, 5:30 p.m.  
Council Chambers, South Haven City Hall 
 

                                        City of South Haven 
 
 

Please note that the meeting will be held in South Haven City Hall, Council Chambers. 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
Roll Call: Chairman Jeff Arnold, Vice-Chairman Mary Stephens, Cathy Pyle, Tim Reineck, Alan 
Silverman, Daniel Strong, Greg Sullivan. 
 
2.  Approval of Agenda  
 
3.  Approval of Minutes:  August 19, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 
4.  Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
5.  Marina Reports 
 
6.  Fireboat Discussion 
 
7.  Bridge Reconstruction 
 
8.  Capital Improvement Plan 
 
9.  Strategic Plan 
 
10.  Marina Rates 
 
11. Pierhead Dredging 
 
Member and Staff Comments 
 
Adjourn 
 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
Paul VandenBosch 
Secretary, Harbor Commission 

1

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



Harbor Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
Tuesday, August 19, 2014, 5:30 p.m.  
Council Chambers, South Haven City Hall 
 

                                        City of South Haven 
 
 
 

1.  Call to Order by Co-Chair Stephens at 5:30 p.m. 
 

 Present: Pyle, Reineck, Silverman, Strong, Stephens 
 Absent:  Arnold, Sullivan 
 
Also present: John Marple, Marina Manager 

 
2.  Approval of Agenda  
 
     Motion by Strong, second by Pyle to approve the August 19, 2014 regular meeting agenda.       
       

 All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
3.  Approval of Minutes:  June 17, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 

 Motion by Sullivan, second by Reineck to approve the June 17, 2014 regular meeting    
 minutes as corrected. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
4.  Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

None at this time. 
 
5.  Marina Reports 
 

 VandenBosch reviewed the Marina Reports through July 31, noting that is one month into   
 the fiscal year. Pointed out the repairs and maintenance budget, some of which has already  
 been spent. Responded to Silverman’s question regarding the budget, that it is an annual    
budget. Pointed out that the Maritime restroom upgrade expenses were wrongly placed on 
the supplies budget line, rather than repair and maintenance and commented that a current 
project is electric pedestal repair/replacement. This will be corrected for next month. 
 
VandenBosch noted that seasonal revenues look very good for this season; revenues may 
break the record for all the years we have been tracking revenues. 
 

2

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



Regarding the Black River Park Fund, VandenBosch noted that the fund balance of 
$198,000 will likely be put toward some improvements at Black River Park. Revenues are 
down for this year, according to VandenBosch, but more revenue will be coming in the next 
three months. The board discussed the low revenue figures being at least partly attributed to 
the weather/cooler temperatures.  
 
VandenBosch noted that the River Maintenance Fund budget has $20,000 in Capital Outlay 
and a projected cash balance of $73,486. After some discussion, VandenBosch noted that 
the fish grinder is out of service; staff is waiting for a part to repair it.  
 
There have been problems with Fidelman bringing his rental units into Black River Park to 
launch, VandenBosch informed the commissioners, and Fidelman has been asked not to do 
that. Since that practice has continued VandenBosch has asked our city attorney what the 
city’s next step is.  
 
VandenBosch commented on problems with trailer parking in Black River Park; some 
seasonal boaters and others dropped their empty boat trailers off and left them in parking 
spaces, which on heavy use days such as festival weekends, is a problem. Trailer parking is 
something that needs to be worked on, either by policy, adding a fee, or indicating/providing 
an alternative location. Strong asked if seasonal renters can leave their trailers there to 
which VandenBosch responded, “No one should be parking (empty trailers) there.” 
Silverman suggested that staff let seasonal boaters know in their contract and indicate 
somewhere they can park legally.” 
 
VandenBosch noted that he will not be here in October and unless there is a pressing issue 
the meeting will probably be canceled. 
 
VandenBosch indicated lake levels are almost up to the average point. 
 

6.  Fireboat Discussion 
 
Members and staff voiced their disappointment that Tony Marsala, the Fire Marshall, is not 
present.  
 
Pyle has a lead on a boat lift for $1,500 which would accommodate the boat and is a very 
good deal.  
 
In response to a query by Stephens regarding what the board wants to do, Silverman 
suggested that VandenBosch send the Fire Marshall a letter noting the board’s 
disappointment due to anticipation of his presence at this meeting, with a reminder of the 
information the board needs him to bring. 
 
Motion by Silverman, second by Strong to table the fireboat discussion until the next 
meeting. 
 

3

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



All in favor. Motion carried. 
 

7.  Capital Improvement List 
 
VandenBosch enumerated several grants the City can apply for; noted the Fisheries Trust 
Grant is due in January with several others due in April. In January or February staff will 
start to budget for some of the larger projects. VandenBosch has been trying to organize 
and come up with a strategy and is asking this board for advice and discussion. 
 
VandenBosch noted that projects under $3,000 do not need to be bid out and pointed out 
that there is a lot more staff work, planning ahead and time involved and someone must be 
hired to put bid specifications together for bigger projects. 
 
Regarding grant strategy, VandenBosch indicated that staff has identified a number of 
grants including the Michigan State Waterways grants, the main grant used at the city’s 
marinas. There are four types of Waterways grants: 1.) Harbor infrastructure; 2.) Boating 
access site; 3.) Harbor preliminary engineering study and 4.) Preliminary engineering for 
boating access (includes the boat launch/marina). Waterways suggests that projects applied 
for be under $300,000. VandenBosch noted that the city can apply for more than one of 
these grants and pointed out that the match for the North marina was 50%, but applications 
can have as low as 25% local match of the total project cost.  
 
VandenBosch noted that Land and Water Conservation fund grants require a fifty percent 
(50%) match. This grant can be used in part for acquisition of property but also for 
recreational facilities, such as dinghy docks and kayak launches.  
 
The Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund, according to VandenBosch, is the main grant 
that the city applies for every year. The North Beach has been the city’s application for the 
past two (2) years. VandenBosch explained that there is also a small development project 
grant ($50,000 and under) for which the city can apply for up to three (3) projects city-wide. 
VandenBosch noted staff definitely wants to take advantage of those, which require only a  
twenty-five percent (25%) match. In response to a question about what type of projects 
VandenBosch enumerated park projects such as landscaping, picnic area, benches and 
water front improvements such as the boat launch ramp improvements. VandenBosch noted 
his intention is to focus on these smaller grants for the boat launch and landscaping park-
type improvements for Black River Park. 
  
In response to Strong's question of what type of things are being considered for the North 
Beach VandenBosch listed concession stand upgrades; new playground equipment; 
benches, etc. 
 
VandenBosch noted that the Recreation Passport Grant could be used for a pavilion/picnic 
area and up to three can be applied for in a year. 
 
The Great Lakes Fisheries Trust grant is being targeted by staff for the fish cleaning station.  

4

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



VandenBosch explained that due to budget limitations this year, there are not many short-
term projects that staff can recommend other than fixing the electric pedestals. In the area of 
long term projects there are two (2) major areas of focus: 1.) Maritime Marina and 2.) South 
Side Marina. The Maritime Marina’s docks, plumbing and electric are all not in great shape 
and/or outdated. The docks will have to be rebuilt within five (5) years which is a big project, 
which he guesses would be around $200,000 to $300,000. VandenBosch noted that 
regarding whether the pilings need to be replaced, he would want to get an engineering 
recommendation.  
 
During discussion regarding changing of configuration of docks, VandenBosch noted we are 
seeing larger boats coming in and if there are going to be changes made, wider would be 
better. Further discussion ensued including having expansion plans looked at by an 
engineer and Silverman’s request for input from Marina Manager Marple.  
 
Marple pointed out that the South Side Marina is somewhat outdated especially with the 
forty (40) to sixty (60) foot boats getting wider. These bigger, wider boats can be 
accommodated on the head dock but in the future we should look at reconfiguration on the 
South Side. At the Maritime Museum, which was designed for forty foot (40’) boats, there 
doesn’t seem to be a problem; a certain distance is needed between the finger piers. Today 
having forty foot (40’) slips is a good thing; the buying public is going towards a larger boat. 
Marple noted the average boater is getting older and staying put more than touring.”  Marple 
observed that   the economy and gas prices inhibit younger boaters. Long term, Marple 
would look at the South Side to move into the future, while at the Maritime, not so much. 
Marple noted that VandenBosch is right on target regarding upgrades at the Maritime 
Museum docks. Within the basin on the North side the mixture of docks is pretty good, 
except that there aren’t enough thirty foot (30’) docks. “We have plenty of forty (40), fifty (50) 
and sixty (60), with sixty (60) hardest to sell.” Marple likes the sixties (60s) for transient 
boaters. Marple stated that sixty percent (60%) of the transients stayed on the Northside this 
season and people who can afford to travel have a forty-five (45) or larger boat. Marple 
noted that on the weekends the Northside is full. “Fifty percent (50%) of the boats in our 
harbor are there on  
Friday and Saturday nights,” Marple stated, “Sunday through Thursday we have a real 
problem.”  
 
Marple emphasized that the city should be looking at the wave attenuation. In the future, not 
next year, enlarging the head dock on the South Side would be advantageous for big boats. 
Tour ships, the big boats, are moving; they are attractions. Accommodations are very limited 
right now so the city needs to maximize opportunities for larger boats; tour boats and one 
hundred thirty-five foot (135’) boats, pointing out that the folks that walk off those boats 
spend a ton of money in the community, which is important as well.  
 
Marple sees Black River Park as a fine blend, with the need to attend to the seasonal boater 
a little more.  
 

5

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



Silverman noted that in terms of the future, the marine industry has some excellent statistics 
on the number of boats sold in every category, broken down by hull material; state and 
length. “You can see some trends looking at the trade magazines.” Marple would like to 
figure out the transient issue during the off-season; his take so far is that boat buyers are 
older and/or wealthier. Marple noted that seasonal boating is coming back; the city has great 
facilities.  
 
VandenBosch stressed the need for maintenance and repair at the Maritime Museum docks 
and work on the South Side clubhouse. South Side improvements would include the reroof 
of the building; exterior paint; varnish the arches under the roof and on the interior replace 
carpeting, blinds, walls, furniture and upgrade heating and ventilation. VandenBosch noted 
that the building is going to need a lot of attention. Despite talk about renovating the 
building, VandenBosch does not think a major addition or reconstruction is possible without 
doing the reroof and paint upgrades in the meantime, since a major addition could be a $1M 
project.  
 
In response to a question by Reineck, VandenBosch said a refurbishing of the South Side 
building could be a quarter of a million dollars; including the reroofing and interior. Silverman 
asked if we need to have an engineering firm tell us what we need for a grant to which 
VandenBosch commented that we can say we want to upgrade our facility. Silverman noted 
that a complete renovation of the South Side facility, which is an attractive building, would 
add brightness internally and externally.  Silverman wondered how long it would take staff to 
put together a grant application, submit and get a response. VandenBosch said the deadline 
is April; staff could put a grant together by then.  
 
Silverman asked who makes the decision to move forward. VandenBosch said the City 
Council is the ultimate one but the city manager has to get something started. Sullivan 
asked if a recommendation from this board is necessary, to which VandenBosch responded 
that it helps. 
 
VandenBosch said prioritizing is helpful, but “we will have to recommend something.” 
To explore a renovation at South Side marina as a priority, VandenBosch could get a letter 
of engagement from Abonmarche and look at what needs to be done.  
 
Reineck asked if a rebuilding will attract enough more business, noting that maybe 
upgrading what is there would attract more business.  
 
VandenBosch asked whether Marple has any recommendations for the South Side to attract 
transients. Marple responded, “Amenities.  Natural gas grills; more shade. The building itself 
is in fine shape but the lack of a drain in the central hallway is a long term issue. It would 
have cost $3,500 twenty (20) years ago but now it will cost $50,000 to put in proper 
drainage. The interior office area and living /reception area needs to be upgraded with new 
carpet and furniture. The blinds are twenty-five (25) year old mauve mini blinds; white blinds 
would be better. A large scale renovation of the building? Not sure it will bring in more 
transient boaters.”  

6

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



Marple stated that the main issue is the surge issue, thinks the reputation is there, it’s an 
important issue, “It is a good looking building, even compared with the one across the river.” 
Regarding a large scale renovation, Marple thinks the city should go through a process of 
determining if the community needs a multi-use building pointing out parking is an issue 
down there. While Marple does not know if enlarging would improve transient boating, he 
knows the South Side marina building does need updating. “A steel roof will be a huge 
improvement.” Marple stated that he likes five (5) year plans. “Financially the marinas are 
going to be fine.” Marple thinks there needs to be consensus in place prior to going out for 
the grant. Marple stated, "I don’t know of a better piece of real estate around. Maybe we 
need a yearlong study but in the meantime if we don’t get a new roof on it. . .” 
 
Silverman said there could be several studies done and noted three that are possibilities. 
Marple suggested that the shower area be looked at. “If drainage was installed in the center 
hall along with proper ventilation and heating, those boaters would be ecstatic.” Strongly 
suggests the board go through the South Side facility, noting that the building is in good 
shape, but dated. VandenBosch noted that if staff put these maintenance items into a 
packet less than the $300,000 it might be possible to pay less than 25% of the project cost 
to get it done. 
 
Motion by Silverman, second by Strong, that the city undertake a study and related grant 
application for the renovation of the South Side marina facility building.  
 
After a brief discussion Stephens called for the vote.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 
  
Motion by Silverman that the city undertake a study and apply for a grant to renovate the 
South Side Marina docking facilities and amenities.  
 
VandenBosch requested discussion regarding wave attenuation and electric amperage 
projects. Along the headwall there is demand for dual fifty (50) amp connections; there is a 
need to increase the size of the wiring to do that. Regarding wave attenuation, 
VandenBosch noted that we asked half a dozen venders for quotes and proposals and none 
were willing to sell us their product and say it is going to work. VandenBosch feels we need 
to ask an engineer and find out if there is a way to solve the problem. VandenBosch 
recommends applying for a preliminary engineering study to extend the headwall and wave 
attenuation. After some discussion, VandenBosch noted that the Capital Improvement Plan 
is all about prioritization, not just identifying the projects.  
 
Stephens asked whether staff is looking for a recommendation to City Council. 
VandenBosch informed that he is looking for discussion and prioritization.  
 
Pyle asked about Black River Park and VandenBosch responded that is a separate grant. 
VandenBosch said there could be a conflict; he recommended a waterways boating access 
grant for the driveway reconfiguration; breaking those two up under $300,000 projects. 

7

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



There might be a prioritization question from Waterways if they do not have money for both. 
The City has no other projects for the Waterways Grant; only marinas and Black River Park 
are eligible for those grants.  
 
After discussion regarding priorities, docks or building, Silverman withdrew his motion 
regarding the renovation of the South Side marina docks. VandenBosch estimated the grant 
for expanding the head docks and wave attenuation would probably be fifty to one hundred 
thousand dollars ($50,000 to 100,000) and there would need to be public impact process. 
Silverman suggested the two projects be considered together, noting that the dock 
extension could possibly assist in the wave attenuation.  
 
Stephens asked if the Michigan State Waterways grant is one grant or multiple grants to 
which VandenBosch responded that $300,000 is per grant application. Discussion ensued 
regarding how the projects could work together.  
 
Silverman said the South Side building and the renovation of the Maritime Museum marina 
docks seem to be competing for first place. VandenBosch noted that the museum dock 
project would include a complete rebuild of the docks including plumbing and electric. There 
are other amenities, a roof over the party deck, and other smaller things, that could be 
included. Silverman asked about a public area for seasonal boaters. VandenBosch pointed 
out that the city does not have a lot of real estate in that area but there might be room for a 
small enclosed building. Silverman wondered if it would be appropriate to consider a 
building that could be shared with the Maritime Museum; during boating season it would be 
used by seasonal boaters, but outside the season, the museum had access and could use it 
for a variety of purposes. VandenBosch said it would bump up the project amount by quite a 
bit but replacing cinderblock restrooms is probably a good idea. Sullivan asked if Marple can 
share the seasonal boaters’ point of view.  
 
Marple commented that if one were to ask the boaters at the Maritime Museum they would 
like the party deck fixed up. Staff did bring in a portable gas grill and added hot water for 
them as well as fixing up the bathrooms a little bit. Marple agreed with VandenBosch that 
the dockage must be addressed; it is getting rickety. While Marple is not sure of the extent 
of renovation being considered, the joists and headers underneath the head docks are not 
to code. Marple noted that while not unsafe, those docks were never built properly. There 
would need to be additional joists and the deck boards are getting quite old. Marple noted 
that the head dock is in better shape than the finger piers; the electrical is thirty (30) years 
old, the copper piping was stolen and the plastic is a constant maintenance problem and the 
head dock needs addressing. Marple said his idea would be to clad the existing building and 
enclose the patio area to make a boater’s haven so that during the season during inclement 
weather they have somewhere to get out of the weather.  
 
Pyle asked Marple, regarding the items he mentioned, if there could be a couple of smaller 
projects like gas grills. Marple reminded that we built a building and dredged a river. Marple 
indicated he would like to see more amenities because his job is to sell these facilities. Long 
term, studying the South Side building to see whether we want to enlarge it and he would 

8

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



like to see all four facilities become somewhat consistent with a theme that is similar 
between all the facilities  so wherever you are there is similarity. Marple stressed that he 
would like to see some grills. Marple noted that he understands the financial issues and 
agrees the maritime head docks must be addressed. Would like to clean up Black River 
Park for the seasonal boaters; attend to the launch docks; replace some partitions and 
counter tops in the bathroom facility. Marple noted that what VandenBosch is trying to do is 
get consensus from the commission on what we want to do.  
 
VandenBosch noted that we have a master plan for Black River Park; but the total cost is 
more than the $300,000 project the Waterways Commission likes to see; so if we split it up 
into phases and apply for a number of different grants, we can combine the grant projects to 
complete the full master plan improvements. If we do the driveways as a single project and 
try to do the fish cleaning station at the same time, it would be a major improvement. 
VandenBosch believes we can do that by applying for two different grants, noting that there 
is a $200,000 fund balance so if we applied in April we would hear in November, giving time 
to build up the fund balance to meet that twenty-five percent (25%) match.  
 
Regarding the paving of the Dunkley Street lot, VandenBosch has had discussions with the 
city manager and Downtown Development Authority (DDA), noting there is interest among 
downtown business owners in having more parking during summer weekends. We may be 
able to get the Downtown Development Authority (DDA) to apply for a grant based on 
employment; by showing providing more parking would help downtown businesses increase 
employment. By partnering, VandenBosch feels it may be possible to get all parts of this 
project done; this is early stage thinking. VandenBosch noted that this application would be 
made for a rural business enhancement grant. 
 
VandenBosch noted that he has smaller projects he would like to apply for grants for; the 
launch ramps are getting quite old and staff has had to bolt and weld them to fix them. 
VandenBosch would like to put together a grant application for new docks to replace the four 
(4) fairly old ones; add picnic tables and decorative rock landscaping along the marina. The 
Recreation Passport is not necessarily a marina grant but could possibly get park-like 
amenities paid for.  
 
The other big project at Black River Park Marina is a new restroom and shower building near 
the launch and marina. That is the project we would be leaving for future years while we 
focus on the fish cleaning station, which is a priority of the Mayor. The City Council approves 
the expenditures, so the focus that staff is taking is putting the fish cleaning station first in 
line. Regarding the bathroom rehab, VandenBosch would like to look at a number of the 
smaller grants; forty-five to fifty thousand dollars ($45,000 to $50,000) could do a lot in the 
restrooms. These priorities VandenBosch has been talking about have been developed in 
the last couple of weeks; he wants to write something up in more detail and let the 
commission look at that.  
 
Silverman requested that VandenBosch bring a recommendation to the commission.  
 

9

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



VandenBosch noted that in River Maintenance, there is a twenty-five thousand ($25,000) 
balance in the budget and he would like to try to do sedimentation dredging, particularly  the 
one near the boat launch at Black River Park. VandenBosch has not done a sedimentation 
dredging yet; permits are in place and the soil is not contaminated. The other project that   
could be considered is the turning basin mound. VandenBosch would like to try to contract 
with the Army Corps of Engineers to have them do the work, because they are able to send 
the material out into Lake Michigan, which we are not able to do. That could be a big cost 
savings and presently, the city does not have a site to deposit such dredge spoils. Silverman 
asked if there is any possibility of the Army Corps doing the dredging in spring, due to the 
Queen’s Cup. Silverman also recommended the city have the Corps look at the mouth of the 
harbor at the piers end, especially the north pier. VandenBosch said it is possible if they are 
underway perhaps they could just stop in for a couple of days and do in that time what it 
takes much longer for the smaller guys to do.  
 
Silverman suggested asking our congressman for a little help. Silverman noted the 
sedimentation traps are always somewhat of a mystery; does it help or do they fill in within 
two days. We have a need in that turning basin to excavate that mound; we also know we 
have a need as we exit the harbor. Silverman feels the money is better spent there than on 
the sedimentation trap which we have no idea whether it helps or not.  
 
VandenBosch will come back with shorter list and recap for next month. Noted that there is 
a strategic plan; the commissioners can look at that and offer new ideas. Probably we will 
just start that but having the capital portion is very helpful for him.  
 
Stephens asked if city staff is considering applying for a grant for the wave attenuation. 
VandenBosch will put that together and may ask Abonmarche to provide a letter of 
engagement; we will have to look at it more closely. VandenBosch suggested Abonmarche 
may be willing to give us a cost estimate of what it would cost for the head dock with wave 
attenuation. Stephens asked if there are other grant resources to which VandenBosch 
responded, “Yes, typically the engineering study is done prior to applying for another grant 
for the project.”  
 

8.  Wave Attenuation 
 
VandenBosch again noted that none of the firms staff contacted would sell us their product; 
it was somewhat odd. VandenBosch feels that if we are going to do something, it will need 
to be studied in more depth and a preliminary engineering grant would be money well spent 
for the future. 
 

Member and Staff Comments 
 
Stephens: Did City Council approve a dinghy dock for Admiral Jack’s?  Our recommendation 
to City Council was that the Harbor Commission did not want to see dock space there. 
VandenBosch said any boat can have dinghies tied up; he is not sure that tying up dinghies 

10

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



on a barge is something that had to specifically be asked for. Strong said he recalls the 
commission did not want any big boats tied up.  
 
Pyle: There could be interpretation/confusion of a difference between boats and dinghies 
and noted there are a lot of boats in the harbor that stick out beyond the pilings, and there is 
a lot of space in the navigable harbor way. Pyle thinks there is a misconception that what he 
is doing is what is already being done in the harbor.  
 
Reineck: Believes Joe intended to have dinghies but not “boats”.  
 
Silverman: Noted it irritates him if someone says one thing and does another but also 
pointed out the width of Joe’s boat is narrower than the width of the Idler and if you add the 
width of the dinghies, it is not wider than the width of the Idler.  Does not personally believe 
it is providing any negative consequence to boat navigation – either coming through (either 
direction) or waiting. “No harm, no foul,” Silverman noted that if there were a future project, 
Silverman would like to see everything in writing. If we suddenly see power boats tied up, 
there may be intrusion into navigable space. 
 
Strong: He personally would not tie up there as there is no bumper, and Joe’s signage says 
dinghies only. The liability is Joe’s, not the city’s, according to Strong, and Silverman 
agreed.  
 
VandenBosch:  Noted that if a dangerous traffic situation develops, the city will have an 
issue to deal with, but it is certainly allowed to tie a dinghy up to a boat in the harbor.  
 
Pyle: Commented on the shortage of dinghy docks already in South Haven; having the 
barge does bring people up into town.  
 
VandenBosch: Wants people with dinghies to have access to the downtown.  
 

Adjourn 
 
Motion by Strong, second by Reineck to adjourn at 7:21 p.m. 
 
All in favor. Motion carried.  
 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 

11

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



Revenues: Month Actual
YTD 

Actual
2014-15

Adopted Budget
State GrantS-Bldg & Dredging -$                               -$                            -$                                          
Interest and Rents 3                                    6                                 2,000                                         
Charges for Service 45,404                           91,635                         510,000                                     
Other Revenue 1,936                             3,488                          8,000                                         

Total Revenues 47,343$                         # 95,130$                       520,000$                                   

Expenses: Month Actual 0
YTD 

Actual
2014-15

Adopted Budget
Personnel Costs 31,491$                         33,460$                       79,792$                                     
Supplies 929                                929                             10,500                                       
Admin/Computing/Equipment Fees 3,309                             6,618                          39,710                                       
Contractual Services 9,466                             15,649                         87,000                                       
Other Services and Charges 8,551                             16,632                         118,749                                     
Utilities 5,356                             9,263                          46,000                                       
Repairs and Maintenance 4,249                             4,340                          22,000                                       
Capital Outlay 2,031                             2,031                          -                                                
Operating Transfers Out 1,757                             3,513                          21,080                                       
Total Expenses 67,139                           -   92,436                         424,831                                     
Depreciation -                                     -                                  133,300                                     

Total Expenses and Depreciation 67,139$                         92,436$                       558,131$                                   

Net Fund Change (19,796)$                        2,694$                         (38,131)$                                    

Retained Earnings June 30 2,517,661$                  
Less Net Capital Assets (2,379,613)$                 

 Net Undesignated Reserves Unaudited 138,048$                    

Add Seasonal Rentals paid but not posted to income yet 234,498$                     
Deduct Expenses paid in advance, not posted to expense yet -                                
Deduct Receivables owed to Marina but not yet received (2,206)$                      
Deduct State amounts owed to Marina but not yet received (13,709)$                    
Add current expenses owed but not paid yet 3,097$                        

Adjusted Undesignated Reserves 362,422$                    

Cash & Investments Balance at month end 362,422$                    

City of South Haven
Marina Fund - Fund 594

For the period ended August 31, 2014

12

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



Marina Fund Revenue

Marina Fund Revenue
As of August 31, 2014

Fiscal Year Ending in Revenue Operational Net
Seasonal Transient Total Expense Revenue NOTES ON OPERATIONAL EXPENSES:

2002 234,236 161,984 396,220 369,081 27,139
2003 259,840 166,084 425,924 403,463 22,461
2004 280,151 167,907 448,058 429,353 18,705 Operational Expense does not include depreciation of approximately $133,000 per year.
2005 282,245 170,944 453,189 479,287 -26,098 Operational Expenses do not include large construction expenses.
2006 300,819 173,817 474,636 517,881 -43,245 Operational Expenses do not include the annual transfer to the River Maintenance Fund
2007 343,171 170,869 514,040 471,088 42,952 of approximately $21,080 annually. 
2008 368,408 168,362 536,770 493,906 42,864
2009 377,955 166,674 544,629 492,039 52,590
2010 350,635 161,584 512,219 485,399 26,820
2011 314,270 140,546 454,816 521,900 -67,084
2012 330,660 151,046 481,706 427,390 54,316
2013 377,199 89,267 466,466 599,418 -132,952 Operating Expense excludes reimbursable dredging costs
2014 402,337 154,894 557,231 535,339 21,892
2015 8,732 82,903 91,635 88,923 2,712

Seasonal Marina Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 58,007 147,702 34,975 42,960 23,115 -3,846 6,199 1,554 703 1,100 22,348 19,285 354,102
2008 60,795 185,520 32,325 36,210 19,130 16,761 820 50 0 6,550 26,799 900 385,860
2009 44,784 185,069 32,390 25,955 31,150 23,488 843 50 850 900 27,990 1,000 374,469
2010 13,035 218,460 41,530 20,235 5,050 20,692 0 434 350 200 29,812 1,000 350,798
2011 43,222 157,210 38,473 31,230 12,498 -158 800 1,950 400 1,100 17,625 8,865 313,215
2012 31,810 178,650 44,840 14,750 31,795 -1,925 0 200 1,050 3,940 11,420 850 317,380
2013 29,476 169,790 80,125 37,555 28,362 14,431 0 0 750 7,735 7,300 7,545 383,069
2014 328,765 5,389 22,415 950 13,080 8,408 3,918 4,814 387,739
2015 0

Transient Marina Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 0 0 0 8,528 11,494 39,340 56,647 48,986 10,983 1,553 -41 0 177,490
2008 0 0 0 11,657 8,957 29,620 53,315 53,501 11,385 630 0 0 169,065
2009 0 0 0 11,972 10,994 24,877 55,645 39,835 22,176 1,301 0 0 166,800
2010 0 0 0 8,445 9,029 25,154 52,730 40,107 8,654 1,299 0 0 145,418
2011 0 0 0 373 16,162 21,221 47,565 41,459 12,635 515 0 0 139,930
2012 0 0 0 4,684 12,448 31,740 40,344 21,935 4,392 0 -267 0 115,276
2013 0 706 3,502 2,466 3,689 12,501 33,066 40,527 17,724 843 359 542 115,924
2014 2,236 4,453 5,894 6,520 10,785 31,946 42,313 40,590 144,737
2015 0

13

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



Revenues: Month Actual
YTD 

Actual
2014-15

Adopted Budget
State Grant -$                   # -$                     -$                           
Charges for Service 17,212               34,023                 148,500                     
Interest and Rents 4                         7                          3,000                         
Other Revenue -                         -                           -                                 

Total Revenues 17,216$            # 34,030$               151,500$                  

Expenses: Month Actual
YTD 

Actual
2014-15

Adopted Budget
Personnel Costs 4,882$               9,697$                 42,078$                     
Supplies 219                    322                      3,000                         
Admin/Computing/Equipment Fees 2,095                 4,191                   25,145                       
Contractual Services 532                    1,720                   12,000                       
Utilities 992                    1,915                   10,050                       
Other Services and Charges 690                    1,294                   10,050                       
Repairs and Maintenance -                         -                           7,500                         
Capital Outlay -                         -                           -                                 
Operating Transfers Out to 296 483                    967                      5,800                         
Total Expenses 9,894                 20,105                 115,623                     

Depreciation -                         -                           50,300                       

Total Expenses and Depreciation 9,894$              20,105$               165,923$                  

Net Fund Change 7,322$               13,925$               (14,423)$                    

Retained Earnings June 30 620,910$             
Less Net Capital Assets (466,574)$            

 Net Undesignated Reserves 154,337$            

Add Seasonal Rentals paid but not posted to income yet 49,881$               
Deduct Receivables owed to BRP but not yet received (315)$                   
Deduct Expenses paid in advance, not posted to expense yet (1,882)                 
Add(Deduct) Amount due to/ from Beach, Rev earned but not in cash (20,103)$              
Add Accounts Payable owed but not paid yet 482$                    

Adjusted Undesignated Reserves 196,325$            

196,325$            
Cash & Investments Balance at month end

City of South Haven
Black River Park Fund - Fund 545

For the period ended August 31, 2014

14

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



Black River Park Revenues

Black River Park Revenue
As of August 31, 2014

Fiscal Year Seasonal Transient Boat Launch & Seasonal Revenue Operational Net
 Ending Dock Dock Parking fees Launch Permit Total Expense Revenue Note: Operational Expense does not include depreciation of approximately 

2007 84,563 9,480 42,544 10,471 147,058 90,412 56,646 $50,000 per year.
2008 96,484 11,143 37,896 10,053 155,576 97,145 58,431 Operational Expenses do not include large construction expenses or.
2009 93,239 9,240 37,261 11,922 151,662 99,992 51,670 Transfer to River Maintenance Fund of approximately $5,800 annually
2010 84,432 9,249 38,478 10,183 142,342 90,883 51,459
2011 66,393 8,658 42,038 3,859 120,948 113,430 7,518
2012 73,619 10,711 55,134 10,097 149,561 129,949 19,613
2013 71,440 9,150 47,844 10,980 139,414 102,155 37,259
2014 85,510 12,987 47,487 10,550 156,534 143,867 12,667
2015 24,425 1,525 1,870 6,004 33,824 19,139 14,685

Boat Launching & Parking Fees Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 0 0 0 1,289 4,160 7,725 13,459 7,941 5,917 1,808 0 0 42,299
2008 0 0 0 831 2,768 5,172 11,030 10,046 4,709 2,170 0 0 36,726
2009 0 0 0 370 3,378 5,558 10,738 7,704 8,311 812 0 0 36,871
2010 0 0 0 527 6,102 4,284 13,972 11,844 2,799 2,186 0 0 41,714
2011 0 0 0 126 4,301 6,870 19,145 10,345 7,373 1,221 0 0 49,381
2012 0 0 0 0 7,000 10,050 19,667 9,346 4,702 2,376 1,031 112 54,285
2013 56 0 91 637 3,671 6,154 14,069 12,964 4,874 3,081 14 0 45,611
2014 0 0 0 866 5,519 6,100 11,176 13,249 36,910
2015 0

Launching - Seasonal Permit Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 0 0 0 2,261 4,157 2,749 1,453 0 0 0 0 0 10,620
2008 0 0 0 1,885 3,743 2,972 1,620 0 0 0 0 0 10,220
2009 0 0 0 2,770 4,924 2,608 640 0 0 0 0 0 10,942
2010 0 0 0 1,370 7,158 1,015 1,546 0 75 0 0 150 11,314
2011 0 0 0 610 75 1,403 1,222 0 0 75 0 0 3,385
2012 0 0 0 600 6,620 1,580 1,200 0 0 -270 0 0 9,730
2013 0 100 400 2,400 3,900 3,250 1,050 200 50 0 0 100 11,450
2014 100 75 175 1,875 4,500 2,425 1,275 250 10,675
2015 0

Seasonal Dock Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 9,140 27,530 6,155 11,695 12,270 5,762 0 0 250 400 5,200 4,787 83,189
2008 7,940 45,315 9,400 11,905 12,675 -1,388 0 0 200 2,000 5,009 1,655 94,711
2009 6,865 41,215 7,085 9,125 4,990 15,095 0 0 0 0 5,000 0 89,375
2010 3,740 30,265 19,680 11,325 15,585 -1,163 1,650 0 0 0 4,650 2,369 88,101
2011 6,550 22,995 3,740 7,215 8,505 8,720 727 3,707 0 1,680 2,175 4,670 70,684
2012 3,995 20,485 9,585 6,440 18,500 1,655 3,745 0 0 600 2,000 200 67,205
2013 3,070 24,760 11,180 6,850 17,300 1,735 55 985 0 800 4,700 2,650 74,085
2014 49,950 -430 -1,870 8,490 11,425 8,755 1,870 0 78,190
2015 0

Transient Dock Revenue Calendar Year
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total

2007 0 0 0 169 1,303 1,986 3,988 2,672 984 0 0 0 11,102
2008 0 0 0 329 1,562 1,609 2,571 2,904 1,204 303 0 0 10,481
2009 0 0 0 0 483 1,776 2,444 3,796 1,332 0 0 0 9,831
2010 0 0 0 0 748 930 2,657 2,479 746 0 0 0 7,560
2011 0 0 0 0 818 1,958 4,492 2,190 1,181 23 0 0 10,662
2012 0 0 0 0 604 2,221 3,567 2,325 1,125 98 0 0 9,939
2013 0 0 0 0 163 1,873 3,815 4,435 808 74 0 0 11,168
2014 0 0 0 0 911 2,944 2,412 3,592 9,859
2015 0

15

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



Revenues: Month Actual
YTD 

Actual
2014-15

Adopted Budget
Assessments -$                   -$                -$                         
Interest and Rents -                     -                  -                           
Other Revenue -                     -                  -                           
Operating Transfers In 3,073                 6,147               36,880                     

Total Revenues 3,073$              6,147$            36,880$                  

Expenditures: Month Actual
YTD 

Actual
2014-15

Adopted Budget
Operating Supplies -$                   -$                500$                        
Contractual Services -                     -                  -                           
Repairs and Maintenance -                     -                  -                           
Capital Outlay -                     -                  20,000                     

Total Expenditures -$                  -$               20,500$                  

Net Fund Change 3,073$               6,147$             16,380$                   

Prior Year End Fund Balance June 30 57,106$           

Estimated YTD Fund Balance 63,252$          

Cash & Investments Balance at month end 63,252$          

Projected Cash Balance at Fiscal Year End 73,486$          

City of South Haven
River Maintenance Fund - Fund 296

For the period ended August 31, 2014

16

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



Ft.

-1

0

+ 1

+ 2

+ 3

+ 4

+ 5

M.

-0.3

0

+ 0.3

+ 0.6

+ 0.9

+ 1.2

+ 1.5

2012

AUG

1986

SEP

1986

OCT

1986

NOV

1986

DEC

1986

2013

JAN

1987

FEB

1986

MAR

1986

APR

1986

MAY

1986

JUN

1986

JUL

1986

AUG

1986

1964

SEP

1986

1964

OCT

1986

1964

NOV

1986

1964

DEC

1986

2012

2014

JAN

1987

2013

FEB

1986

1964

MAR

1986

1964

APR

1986

1964

MAY

1986

1964

JUN

1986

1964

JUL

1986

1964

AUG

1986

1964

SEP

1986

1964

OCT

1986

1964

NOV

1986

1964

DEC

1986

2012

15

JAN

1987

2013

CHART DATUM  577.5 FEET (176.0 METERS)

1985
1985

1973 1973

1936
1934

1926 1934

** Average, Maximum and Minimum for period 1918-2013

LAKES MICHIGAN-HURON

LAKES MICHIGAN-HURON WATER LEVELS - AUGUST 2014

LEGEND
LAKE LEVELS

RECORDED

PROJECTED

AVERAGE **

MAXIMUM **

MINIMUM **

17

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



 

City of South Haven 

 
 

PRESS RELEASE 
 
City of South Haven 
539 Phoenix Street, South Haven, MI 49090 
Fax: 269-637-5319 
Web: www.south-haven.com 

 
Local Media                                                                  DATE: August 4, 2014 

 
 
 

REPAIRS SCHEDULED FOR DYCKMAN AVENUE BASCULE BRIDGE 
 
 
 
FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE  –  (South Haven, Michigan) The City’s Department of 

Public Works has announced that the Dyckman Bascule Bridge rehabilitation project is 

scheduled to begin on Tuesday, September 2nd.  It is anticipated that the contractor will 

mobilize in the week immediately following Labor Day to begin deck repairs on the fixed 

spans of the bridge.  The moveable span will remain operational for boat traffic through 

October 15th.  Once the channel is closed to navigation, the contractor will proceed to 

begin the critical work of replacing the electrical and mechanical systems which operate 

the moveable span.  The progress schedule requires the work to be completed and the 

channel reopened to boat traffic on May 1, 2015.   

Due to the nature of the construction activities, the bridge will be closed to all vehicular 

and pedestrian traffic for the duration of the construction.  A detour route will be posted 

along Dunkley Avenue, Wells Street, Blue Star Highway, Baseline Road, and North 

Shore Drive.   North side businesses will remain open during construction. 

The  Bascule  Bridge  Reconstruction  Project  is  being  undertaken  by  the  City  of  

South  Haven  in cooperation with the Michigan Department of Transportation.  Funding 

is being provided through the State Local Bridge Program and the Federal Small Urban 

Program.  Local matching funds are being provided by the Downtown Development 

Authority.   The work is necessary to replace obsolete equipment, improve ride quality 

and increase pedestrian safety.  Anlaan Corporation of Ferrysburg, Michigan is serving 

as the General Contractor for the project. 

For more information, contact: Larry Halberstadt, City Engineer,  lhalberstadt@south- 
haven.com or 269-637-0770. 

 
 
 

-------------------- END -------------------- 
18

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda

http://www.south-haven.com/
mailto:lhalberstadt@south-haven.com
mailto:lhalberstadt@south-haven.com
mailto:lhalberstadt@south-haven.com


September 8, 2014

TO: John Marple

FR: Paul VandenBosch

RE: Boat Storage During Bridge Reconstruction

Because the scheduled reconstruction of Dyckman Bridge may impact boaters who are 
slipped downstream from Dyckman Bridge and need to haul out upstream from Dyckman 
Bridge, the Black River Park Marina will be made available for boat storage during this period.

From September 20 to the end of the season, please make any open slips in Black River Park
Marina available to boaters affected by the Dyckman Bridge Reconstruction project at no 
charge.

The intent is that boaters may move from a downstream slip to Black River Park Marina to 
wait for haul out services.

This service will be provided free of charge on a first come, first serve basis.  No electric or 
water service will be available after October 15.  All boats must be removed from Black River 
Park by October 31.

19

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



South Haven Municipal Marina, Black River Park and River Maintenance
Capital Improvement Plan
Fall, 2014

Year Year Year Year Year
Current Year 1 2 3 4 5

Project, Project Cost FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019
Local Expense/Match Local Expense/Match Local Expense/Match Local Expense/Match Local Expense/Match Local Expense/Match

Marina Fund

South Side Building Renovation
$300,000.00 1,250 50,000 150,000

Maritime Dock Replacement 
$300,000.00 2,000 50,000 150,000

Perform Study
$100,000.00 750 50,000

$300,000.00 2,000 50,000 150,000

$50,000.00 2,000 5,000 12,500

Marina Dredging Marina Dredging Marina Dredging
40,000 40,000

Staff Managed Improvements
$25,000 per year 25000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000

27,000 127,000 222,000 89,500 265,000 175,000

Black River Park Fund

Fish Cleaning Station
$165,000.00 750 24,000 15,000

Driveway Improvements
$300,000.00 1,500 18,000 150,000

$50,000.00 2,000 7,500 12,500

Apply for Waterways 
Harbor Infrastructure 
Grant

Design and Bid 
Specifications

Construction Fall/Winter 
2016

Apply for Waterways 
Harbor Infrastructure 
Grant

Design and Bid 
Specifications

Construction Fall/Winter 
2018

South Side Dock Extension and 
Wave Attenuation Study

Apply for Waterways 
Harbor Preliminary 
Engineering Study Grant

South Side Dock Extension 
Project

Apply for Waterways 
Harbor Infrastructure 
Grant

Design and Bid 
Specifications

Construction Fall/Winter 
2019

South Side Headwall Electric 
Upgrade

Apply for Waterways 
Harbor Infrastructure 
Grant

Design and Bid 
Specifications

Construction Fall/Winter 
2016

Total Marina Fund Annual 
Capital Expense

Apply for Great Lakes 
Fisheries Trust Grant

Design and Bid 
Specifications

Construction Fall/Winter 
2016

Apply for Waterways 
Boating Access 
Infrastructure Grant

Design and Bid 
Specifications

Construction Fall/Winter 
2016

Boat Launch Ramp Dock 
Replacement, Landscaping, 
Amenities

Apply for MNRTF Small 
Development Grant and 
Recreation Passport

Design, Bid Specifications, 
Installation

Construction Fall/Winter 
2016

20

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



$45,000.00 750 6,000 11,250

$300,000.00 2,000 50,000 150,000

Staff Managed Improvements
$25,000 per year 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

15,000 65,500 198,750 12,000 60,000 160,000

River Maintenance Fund

Pierhead Dredging
40,000 40,000

Turning Basin Dredging
40,000 40,000

Black River Dredging
200,000

40,000 40,000 0 200,000 40,000 40,000

Black River Boat Launch 
Restroom Renovation

Apply for MNRTF Small 
Development Grant and 
Recreation Passport

Design and Bid 
Specifications

Construction Fall/Winter 
2016

Boat Launch/Marina Restroom, 
Showers

Apply for Waterways 
Harbor Infrastructure 
Grant

Design and Bid 
Specifications

Construction Fall/Winter 
2019

Total Black River Park Fund 
Annual Capital Expense

Pierhead Dredging, 
Contract with Army Corps

Pierhead Dredging, 
Contract with Army Corps

Turning Basin Dredging, 
Contract with Army Corps

Turning Basin Dredging, 
Contract with Army Corps

Upper Harbor Channel 
Dredging

Total River Maintenance Fund 
Annual Capital Expense

21

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



South Haven Municipal Marina 
Grant Project Description 
 
Project Name:  South Side Marina Building Renovation 
Target Grant:   Waterways Harbor Infrastructure Grant 
Estimated Cost: $300,000 
Funding Source:  Marina Fund 
Application Year:  2015 
 
The City of South Haven is seeking assistance in preparation of a grant application for this project. 
 
The South Side Municipal Marina is a transient boater marina facility which is part of the State of 
Michigan Harbor of Refuge program and participates in the State Reservation System.  The marina 
building has served for 25 years as a marina office, boater lounge, laundry and restroom/shower 
facility. 
 
The South Side Marina building is in need of a number of maintenance items.  This list is in order of 
priority: 
 
Roof replacement 
Roof repair 
Carpeting 
Interior paint 
Blinds and window treatments 
Exterior paint and stain 
Office desk and customer service area 
Restroom and shower heating and ventilation upgrades 
Restroom and shower drainage improvements 
Exterior lighting upgrades 
Washers and driers 
Gas grills 
Picnic tables and umbrellas 
Marina dock electric system upgrades 
 
The intent is that the engineering professional will inspect the building and in consultation with City 
staff, propose a work item list which does not exceed a $300,000 cost estimate. 
 
The engineering professional will prepare a grant application for submittal to the Waterways 
Commission for a Harbor Infrastructure Grant prior to April, 2015. 

22

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



South Haven Municipal Marina 
Grant Project Description 
 
Project Name:  South Side Marina Dock Extension Engineering 
Target Grant:   Waterways Harbor Preliminary Engineering Grant 
Estimated Cost: $100,000 
Funding Source: Marina Fund 
Application Year:  2015 
 
The City of South Haven is seeking a proposal for an engineering study and assistance in preparation of 
a grant application for this project. 
 
The South Side Municipal Marina is a transient boater marina facility which is part of the State of 
Michigan Harbor of Refuge program and participates in the State Reservation System.   
 
There is demand for more dock space during the peak season and for dockage of larger vessels than can 
be accommodated in existing marina slips.  An extension of the South Side Marina head dock to the 
west is desired to allow for more head dock mooring for transient vessels.  In addition, marina users in 
the existing marina basin experience motion of boats due to wave action in some Lake Michigan wave 
conditions. 
 
The City desires a design that incorporates both a head dock extension and a wave attenuation 
component that reduces wave action in the South Side Marina basin.   
 
The purpose of the dock is primarily for transient boat mooring, however the City occasionally hosts 
events such as the Queen’s Cup and Tall Ship festivals, and the dock must be usable for these purposes.  
The design must include a public dinghy dock. 
 
This project must include a public input process to assess the impact of a dock extension on users of 
Riverfront Park, as well as general public concerns related to view, impacts to navigation in harbor and 
aesthetics of the dock design and location.  Close attention should be paid to impacts of wave 
attenuation on the other areas of the harbor to avoid reflecting waves across the river and exacerbating 
wave issues to other property owners. 
 
The engineering deliverables for this project are a recommended plan for a dock extension, site plan 
zoning approval assistance, bid specifications and grant application for a grant to construct the dock 
extension.   
 
The intent is that the engineering professional will propose a not to exceed cost for the above services 
and that number would be the Harbor Preliminary Engineering grant request amount.  The engineering 
work would proceed only if a grant is awarded. 
 
The engineering professional will prepare a grant application for submittal to the Waterways 
Commission for a Harbor Preliminary Engineering Grant prior to April, 2015. 

23

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



South Haven Municipal Marina 
Grant Project Description 
 
Project Name:  Black River Park Fish Cleaning Station 
Target Grant:   Great Lakes Fisheries Trust 
Estimated Cost: $300,000 
Funding Source:  Black River Park Fund 
Application Year:  2015 
 
The City of South Haven is seeking assistance in preparation of a grant application for this project. 
 
The current Black River Park Fish Cleaning Station is a facility inside a gated area of the Black River 
Park Boat Launch facility.  The facility is open to the public, but not easily accessible by those who 
have not paid the entry fee to use the boat launch.  The current station uses a grinder pump which 
discharges to the sanitary sewer.  There have been a number of problems with grinders getting jammed 
with fish parts and with sanitary sewer lift stations failing to move the fish debris.   
 
The City of South Haven has approved a Black River Park Master Plan, which went through a Harbor 
Commission led planning process including a number of public input meetings.  The Black River Park 
Master Plan has identified a new location for a fish cleaning station outside of the gated boat launch 
area.  The fish cleaning station project is one part of a larger master plan to upgrade the area. 
 
This project would construct a new fish cleaning station and demolish the existing fish cleaning station.  
Options other than sanitary sewer disposal of fish debris will be reviewed and considered, including a 
cooler system which will hold the fish carcasses for processing into pet food. 
 
The intent is that the engineering professional will review the Black River Park Master Plan, prepare a 
cost estimate for construction of the fish cleaning station which does not exceed a $300,000 cost 
estimate.  The professional shall coordinate construction of the fish cleaning station with other 
improvements as outlined in the Black River Park Master Plan and budgeted in the  
 
The engineering professional will prepare a grant application for submittal to the Great Lakes Fisheries 
Trust prior to April, 2015. 

24

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



South Haven Municipal Marina 
Grant Project Description 
 
Project Name:  Black River Park Driveway Improvements 
Target Grant:   Waterways Boating Access Infrastructure Grant 
Estimated Cost: $300,000 
Funding Source:  Marina Fund 
Application Year:  2015 
 
The City of South Haven is seeking assistance in preparation of a grant application for this project. 
 
Black River Park Boat Launch is a public boat launch into the Black River.  It is approximately one 
mile to Lake Michigan, and is the only boat launch access point to Lake Michigan between Saugatuck 
and Benton Harbor.   
 
For many years the preferred road access to the boat launch has been from the south along a narrow 
road which crosses a culvert/bridge.  The south access encourages drivers with trailered boats to use 
Phoenix Street, Broadway and Dunkley Avenue to approach the boat launch.  The intersections 
Phoenix/Broadway and Dunkley/Broadway/Dyckman are congested, highly traveled by pedestrians and 
bicyclists and are in the queuing lanes for the Dyckman Bascule Bridge, which opens every half hour 
blocking traffic. 
 
In order to encourage boat trailer traffic to approach the boat launch from Blue Star Highway, Wells 
Street and Dunkley Avenue, the City of South Haven proposes to construct a driveway to the boat 
launch gate from Dunkley Avenue and reconfigure exit gates to allow for easier exit to the east.  The 
existing route from the south would remain in place, but traffic to the boat launch gate would be 
redirected around to the new driveway.   
 
The City of South Haven has approved a Black River Park Master Plan, which went through a Harbor 
Commission led planning process including a number of public input meetings.  The Black River Park 
Master Plan has identified a new driveway configuration for the boat launch, which is intended to 
reduce traffic conflicts in the area.  The driveway improvement project is one part of a larger master 
plan to upgrade the area. 
 
The driveway design will include an improved configuration to reduce traffic delay impacts on vehicles 
exiting the boat launch when boat launch traffic entering the gated area is backed up at the boat launch 
gate.  There will be an additional exit out of the boat launch gated area.  Storm drainage improvements 
will be made to area to support the driveway infrastructure.   
 
The intent is that the engineering professional will review the Black River Park Master Plan, coordinate 
the driveway design with other proposed projects, and prepare a cost estimate for driveway 
improvements which does not exceed a $300,000 cost estimate. 
 
The engineering professional will prepare a grant application for submittal to the Waterways 
Commission for a Boating Access Infrastructure Grant prior to April, 2015. 
 

25

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



South Haven Municipal Marina 
Grant Project Description 
 
Project Name:  Black River Park Boat Launch Ramp Dock Replacement 
Target Grant:   MNRTF Small Development Grant 
Estimated Cost: $50,000 
Funding Source: Black River Park Fund 
Application Year:  2015 
 
The City of South Haven is seeking a proposal for grant application and bid specification for purchase 
of Boat Launch Ramp Docks. 
 
Black River Park Boat Launch is a public boat launch into the Black River.  It is approximately one 
mile to Lake Michigan, and is the only boat launch access point to Lake Michigan between Saugatuck 
and Benton Harbor.   
 
The existing boat launch ramp docks have served for many years and are worn.  The wood decking is 
broken in some sections, risers have had to be replaced and rebolted, and the steel structure is starting 
to loosen up.  Repairs to the docks are frequently needed.  The docks are pulled out of the water at the 
end of the season due to ice issues.  The paving at the ramp approach is crumbling and in need of 
replacement.  There is a grade issue that causes some trailers to bottom out on the asphalt, damaging it. 
 
The City desires to replace four old ramp docks with new, and regrade, mill and replace the paving in 
the ramp approach.  In addition, the City wishes to add a number of landscaping upgrades and picnic 
tables to the area. 
 
The intent is that the engineering professional will prepare bid specifications for purchase of 
replacement launch ramp docks picnic tables and landscaping improvements,  design a regrading and 
asphalt resurfacing of the ramp approach, and prepare a cost estimate for ramp improvements which 
does not exceed a $50,000 cost estimate. 
 
The engineering professional will prepare a grant application for submittal to the Waterways 
Commission for a MNRTF Small Development Grant prior to April, 2015. 

26

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



South Haven Municipal Marina 
Grant Project Description 
 
Project Name:  Black River Park Boat Launch Restroom Renovation 
Target Grant:   Recreation Passport Grant 
Estimated Cost: $50,000 
Funding Source: Black River Park Fund 
Application Year:  2015 
 
The City of South Haven is seeking a proposal for grant application and bid specification for 
renovation of the Black River Park Boat Launch Restroom. 
 
Black River Park Boat Launch is a public boat launch into the Black River.  It is approximately one 
mile to Lake Michigan, and is the only boat launch access point to Lake Michigan between Saugatuck 
and Benton Harbor.   
 
The existing restroom is structurally sound, but interior furnishings are beginning to show their age.  In 
order to extend the service life of the building, the City proposed to renew interior furnishings, 
countertops, toilet stall partitions, paint and hand driers.  The City is requesting that the engineering 
professional review the building and propose any other improvements that might be needed, such as 
HVAC, ventilation,  relocation of communication equipment and sanitary repairs. 
 
The intent is that the engineering professional will prepare bid specifications for renovation of the 
restroom facility that does not exceed a $45,000 cost estimate. 
 
The engineering professional will prepare a grant application for submittal to the Waterways 
Commission for a Recreation Passport Grant prior to January, 2015. 

27

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



04/05/12

South Haven Harbor Capital Improvement Plan
Black River Maintenance Fund
Fund Projection Approved Proposed

Actual Actual Budget Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

2009-2010 2010-2011 2011-2012 2012-2013 2013-2014 2014-2015 2015-2016 2017-2018 2019-2020 2020-2021

1 Beginning Cash -73,745 -28,102 10,260 58,434 106,417 41,091 82,265 113,439 144,613 175,787
2
3 REVENUES
4 Interest Income 2,836 2,123 1,500 1,309
5 Dredging Assessments 15,770 16,773 16,000 16,000
6 Transfer from Black River Park 4,171 4,171 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,547 5,547
7 Transfer from Municipal Marina 15,438 15,438 25,627 25,627 25,627 25,627 25,627 25,627 25,627 25,627
8 DDA Contribution 0 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
9 Special Assessments 100,000 100,000

10
11 REVENUES TOTAL 38,215 48,505 58,674 58,483 141,174 41,174 41,174 41,174 41,174 141,174
12
13 EXPENSES
14 Operating Supplies 326 277 500 500
15 Other Contractual Services 136
16 Sonar
17 Signage 1,000 1,000
18 Lighting/Reflectors 500 500
19 Construct Dinghy Docks
20 Maintain Dinghy Docks 5,000 5,000
21 Debris Removal / Misc 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
22 Spot Dredging 9,730 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
23 Sedimentation Trap Dredging 0
24 Channel Dredging 200,000 200,000
25
26 EXPENSES TOTAL 326 10,143 10,500 10,500 206,500 0 10,000 10,000 10,000 206,500
27
28 ANNUAL BALANCE 37,889 38,362 48,174 47,983 -65,326 41,174 31,174 31,174 31,174 -65,326
29
30 FUND BALANCE -28,102 10,260 58,434 106,417 41,091 82,265 113,439 144,613 175,787 110,461

28

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



30%
PCW

September 5, 2014

Paul VandenBosch, Assistant City Manager/Harbormaster
City of South Haven 
539 Phoenix Street
South Haven, Michigan 49090

Re: Proposal for Grant Writing and Design/Bid Specification Services 

Dear Mr. VandenBosch, 

Abonmarche is pleased to present this proposal for grant writing and bid specification services to
assist  in your  2015 fiscal  year Marina Fund granting requests.  As a full  service engineering and
architectural firm with over 35 years of experience, we will be able to create the proper budget,
timeline  and  approach  for  each  grant  application  and  bid  specification  to  foster  maximum
success  for  the  City.  Our  staff  will  be  able  to  draw  on  their  planning,  design,  budgeting,
construction  and  regulatory  expertise  to  provide  the  most  accurate  and  efficient  proposal
requirements possible. 

Background and Understanding

The City of South Haven wishes to implement several Marina/Boating Access upgrades as listed in
its Master Recreation plan. The upgrades include:

1. Black River Park driveway improvements to facilitate boater access to the launch area
2. New Black River Park fish cleaning station 
3. Black River Park Boat Launch Ramp Dock Replacement
4. South Side Marina Dock Extension Engineering
5. South Side Marina Building Renovation
6. Black River Park Boat Launch Restroom Renovation
7. Black River Park- Parking Lot Expansion

The City will seek various grant funding opportunities to supplement City funding for the projects.
Abonmarche will  prepare the necessary components to apply for grants associated with each
project. The following describes our list of intended Scope of Services and Fees to complete the
grant application processes:

Task #1 – Black River Park Driveway Improvements

In  order  to  relieve  traffic  congestion  through  the  center  of  downtown  South  Haven,  and
encourage boat trailer traffic to approach the boat launch from Blue Star Highway, the City is
proposing construction of a new drive access to the boat launch at Black River Park. Estimated
cost for this project is $300,000. As part of the grant application process, we will review the Master
Plan, consider other nearby proposed projects and prepare a cost estimate for the construction
and storm drainage improvements. 

29

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



City of South Haven
Proposal for Grant Writing 

and Bid Specifications

September 5, 2014
Page 2 of 6

Abonmarche  will  prepare  the  necessary  components  to  apply  for  the  Waterways  Boating
Infrastructure Grant from the Michigan DNR to help fund this project. Application deadline is April 1,
2015. This program requires a 50% match for awarded funds. Program funding for the 2015 Fiscal
year has not been determined yet, but it is anticipated that the City of South Haven could request
a $150,000 grant amount. 

Waterways Boating Infrastructure Grant Preparation Fee: $1,500
Design and Cost Estimate Preparation Fee: $18,000

Task #2 – Black River Park Fish Cleaning Station

In order to provide greater public access to fish cleaning station services, the City of South Haven
seeks to construct a new fish cleaning facility in Black River Park that will be located outside the
current  gated  area.  Additionally,  alternatives  for  fish  waste  disposal  will  be  evaluated  and
incorporated as part of the project. 

The estimated cost  for  the Fish  Cleaning Station is  $165,000.  Abonmarche Consultants,  Inc.  will
review the Black River  Park Master  Plan and prepare a cost  estimate that will  not exceed the
estimated $165,000 cost. Additionally, we will prepare the necessary components to apply for the
Great Lakes Fisheries Trust Grant for this project. 

2015 grant levels have not been released at this time, but past funding levels have ranged from
$50,000 to approximately $250,000 for similar projects. When funding becomes available, the City
of  South  Haven will  apply  for  $150,000 of  GLFT  funding.  Matching funds are not  required,  but
encouraged. Grant applications are generally due in late August.

Great Lakes Fisheries Trust Grant Preparation Fee: $750
Design and Bid Specification Preparation Fee: $24,000

Task #3 – Black River Park Boat Launch Ramp Dock Replacement

The  Black  River  Park  Boat  launch  ramp  docks  have  reached  a  point  where  the  City  feels
replacement is necessary. The wood decking is broken in certain areas, risers need replacement
and the steel structure is showing signs of age. Additionally, the pavement at the ramp approach is
crumbling and in need of replacement. Also desired are improvements to landscaping and picnic
options in the park. The estimated cost of improvements is $50,000.

Abonmarche will prepare bid specifications for:

 Purchase of replacement launch ramp docks

P:\_Harbor\Strategic Plan\2014\Capital Improvement Plan\SH Grant writing - Black River Park
(2).docx

30

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



City of South Haven
Proposal for Grant Writing 

and Bid Specifications

September 5, 2014
Page 3 of 6

 Purchase of picnic tables and landscaping improvements
 Design for regarding and asphalt resurfacing of ramp approach
 Prepare cost estimate of ramp area improvements.

Additionally,  we will  prepare  the  necessary  grant  application  paperwork  to  submit  a  funding
request to the  MNRTF  for a Small Development Grant. The anticipated grant amount is $37,500.
Grant application deadline is April 1, 2015, with a 25% local match requirement. 

Design and Bid Specification Preparation Fee:  $7,500 
MNRTF Grant Preparation Fee:  $2,000

Task #4 - South Side Marina Dock Extension Engineering

The City of  South Haven, in recognition of the lack of dock space to meet demand, seeks to
create additional dockage space. Additionally, existing marina users have experienced significant
wave action during certain weather  conditions.  Therefore,  the City  desires a solution that can
provide additional dockage and wave attenuation. The hydraulic study is expected to consist of
bathymetric  surveying and information gathering,  establishing a  model  of  the river  conditions,
preparing the study report,  coordination with USCOE and DEQ, etc.  A preliminary  engineering
study investigating the best solution to the South Side Municipal Marina needs is desired. 

Abonmarche will  prepare the necessary components to seek funding for an engineering study
from  the  Waterways  Grant-in-Aid  for  Preliminary  Engineering program.   Grant  assistance  is
provided at a base level of 50% of the estimated project cost. Application deadline is April 1, 2015.
Available funding levels vary from year to year and 2015 levels are not currently available.  The
anticipated cost for the engineering study is $100,000. Grant request will be $50,000.

Once funding has been obtained, the engineering study would include an extensive public input
process with marina users, Riverfront Park users, neighbors, boaters and general public. We would
also prepare a wave study in order to deliver a recommended plan for dock extension, a site plan,
and assistance with zoning approval for the proposed work. 

Waterways Grant in Aid Preparation Fee: $750
Engineering Study Proposal: $100,000

Task #5 - South Side Marina Building Renovation

The South  Side Marina is  in  need of  several  improvements  that  may require  a few phases  to
complete. 

Abonmarche will  work with the City  to inspect the building and develop conceptual  plans for
renovations and prepare a prioritized cost proposal not to exceed $300,000 for the first phase.

P:\_Harbor\Strategic Plan\2014\Capital Improvement Plan\SH Grant writing - Black River Park
(2).docx

31

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



City of South Haven
Proposal for Grant Writing 

and Bid Specifications

September 5, 2014
Page 4 of 6

The City will then seek a grant request of $150,000 through the  Waterways Boating Infrastructure
Grant for this project. Grant assistance is provided at a base level of 50% of the estimated project
cost. Applications are due April 1. 

Waterways Boating Infrastructure Grant Preparation Fee: $1,250

Task #6 - Black River Park Boat Launch Restroom Renovation

The existing restroom facility at the Black River Park Boat Launch is in need of renewed interior
furnishings in order to extend the overall life of the restroom. It is expected that countertops, toilet
stall partitions, hand driers and painting will be included in the work. HVAC, communication and
sanitary sewer improvements may also be considered.

Abonmarche will review the building conditions, propose improvements within the $45,000 budget
and prepare bid specifications for renovation of the restroom facility as directed by the City.

Additionally, we will prepare the necessary components to submit a grant application requesting
$37,500 to the Waterways Recreation Grant Program for the renovation of the restroom. Minimum
program award is $7,500 and maximum is $45,000, with grantee funding 25% of the total project
cost. Funding for the 2015 cycle has not been released yet, but application deadline is anticipated
to be around March 1, 2015.

Bid Specification Fee: $6,000
Waterways Recreation Grant Preparation Fee: $750

Task #7 – Black River Park – Parking Lot Improvements

Additional  parking in the downtown South Haven area is  necessary  to meet  increased tourist,
boater, and resident demand. Expansion of the Black River Park parking into the unpaved area
east of current parking is proposed to increase parking availability. 

Abonmarche will work with the City to submit a Rural Business Enterprise Grant request to partially
fund these improvements.  Grant  applications  may be submitted at  any  time,  but  awards  are
dependent on funding availability at time of submission.

Rural Business Enterprise Grant Preparation Fee: $500

TASK/FEE SUMMARY

The  following  fee  summary  was  developed to  enable  the  City  to  budget  and plan  for  costs
associated with the projects  detailed above from grant  development  and submission through

P:\_Harbor\Strategic Plan\2014\Capital Improvement Plan\SH Grant writing - Black River Park
(2).docx

32

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



City of South Haven
Proposal for Grant Writing 

and Bid Specifications

September 5, 2014
Page 5 of 6

planning and into design and specification development.  This will allow for the City to approach
the various projects in a manner and on a timeline based on available funding and other factors.
Abonmarche will pursue the various tasks below when selected by the City (checking box next
each task’s optional items)

Task Preparation Fee
Task #1 Black River Park Driveway Improvements

Waterways Boating Infrastructure Grant $1,500
Design and Specification Preparation $18,000

Task #2 New Black River Park Fish Cleaning Station
Great Lakes Fisheries Trust Grant $750
Design and Specification Preparation $17,000

Task #3 Black River Park Boat Launch Ramp Dock Replacement
MNRTF Grant $2,000
Project Design and Specification Preparation $7,500

Task #4 South Side Marina Dock Extension Engineering
Waterways Preliminary Engineering Grant $750
Engineering/Hydrology Study $100,000

Task #5 South Side Marina Building Renovation
Waterways Harbor Infrastructure Grant $1,250

Task #6 Black River Park Boat Launch Restroom Renovation
Recreation Passport Grant $750
Design and Specification Preparation $6,000

Task #7 Black River Park – Parking Lot Improvement
Rural Business Enterprise Grant $500

Your signature in the space provided below will  serve as authorization to begin work on these
grants. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (269) 252-8980 or via
email at tmcghee@abonmarche.com  

P:\_Harbor\Strategic Plan\2014\Capital Improvement Plan\SH Grant writing - Black River Park
(2).docx

33

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda

mailto:tmcghee@abonmarche.com


City of South Haven
Proposal for Grant Writing 

and Bid Specifications

September 5, 2014
Page 6 of 6

Sincerely, 

Tony McGhee
Business Development Director

_________________________________________________ _______________________________________
Authorized by Date

P:\_Harbor\Strategic Plan\2014\Capital Improvement Plan\SH Grant writing - Black River Park
(2).docx

34

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



 
HARBOR COMMISSION STRATEGIC PLAN 

Approved April 17, 2012 
 
 

Mission Statement 
 
In the performance of it duties the Harbor Commission shall remain committed to the 
continuous improvement of the Black River Harbor by taking a long term view of the 
harbor's capacity, it's navigability, it's value to the community, and it's use by both public 
and private interests, and shall assure the health, safety and enjoyment of the harbor by 
providing recommendations for its maintenance and operation. 
 

 
Goals and Objectives 

 
A. Safety and Navigation 
 
1. Dredging Needs of the Harbor 
 
Assess the river conditions and prepare to perform maintenance dredging as 
necessary.  -ongoing 
 
Develop a checklist that outlines the steps to be used in assessing the need for 
dredging and the process of dredging.   
 
Maintain valid permits for maintenance dredging.  -ongoing 
 
Dredging is one element of a comprehensive Black River maintenance program that 
must be ongoing. -ongoing 
 
Develop recommendations for maintaining ingress and egress to the harbor, including 
adequate depth at the pierheads. 
 
Apply for any grant funding or other funding that becomes available for harbor dredging 
or other safety improvements.  -ongoing 
 
2. Electrical Utilities 
 
Encourage all marinas and private slips to upgrade their electrical wiring if they are 
making any electrical improvements. -ongoing 
 
3. Fueling of Marine Vessels  
 

35

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



The Commission has identified the direct fueling of boats as a major safety concern and 
has developed the following action steps to educate the public and enforce the laws 
regarding direct fueling:   
 

• Work with marina managers and commodores to have signs posted clearly 
explaining how and where boaters may fuel their boats.   

• Develop an educational campaign that can be used in local schools, boater 
safety classes, in the newspaper and other outlets.   

• Enlist support of the Van Buren County Sheriff Marine Patrol along with SHAES 
and South Haven Police to educate boaters on the dangers and laws regarding 
direct fueling.  Encourage warnings before citations and fines.   

• Send a letter to the State expressing concern and requesting a statement on the 
back of the Marina Operating Permit (MOP) stating: “Direct Fueling is against the 
law and can lead to revocation of this MOP”. 

• Provide the fire code letter from the SHAES Executive Director to marinas. 
 
4. Emergency Services 
 
Promote a close working relationship with the Sheriff Marine Patrol, Coast Guard, Coast 
Guard Auxiliary, South Haven Police Department and South Haven Area Emergency 
Services.  Meet at least annually to discuss mutual issues related to harbor safety.  -
ongoing 
 
Review procedures to respond to fuel and contaminant spills.   
 
Encourage agencies to maintain oil absorbent equipment to manage emergencies. 
 
5. Erosion and Contaminants 
 
Work with the DEQ, DNR, Drain Commission, farmers and other entities to ensure 
proper procedures are followed to reduce erosion and contaminants in the river in the 
City and upstream from the City.   
 
Support testing for E. coli and work to resolve any related issues. -ongoing 
 
 
6. Harbor Traffic Flow and Safety 
 
Identify ways to improve traffic flow especially on weekends and during special events   
 
Ensure that the channel between the harbor lines is kept clear of natural obstructions, 
anchored boats and barges, and all new docks and headwalls.    -ongoing 
 
 
 
 

36

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



 
 
 
Add a light to the bridge that will signal to boaters when the bridge is closing. 
 
7. Public Access  
 
Support public access and use.    -ongoing 
 
Explore installation of a mast hoist for people launching sail boats at the boat launch. 
  
Traffic at the launch area can be dangerous, identify safety improvements.   
 
8. Signage 
 
Evaluate the current signs and upgrade/remove as necessary.  Locate signs 
strategically so as not to block valued views.  
 
Increase the number of No Wake signs, including adding signs at the bridge and at the 
Southside Marina. 
 
 
B. Municipal Marina Facilities 
 
1. Municipal Marina Facilities 
 
Promote quality facilities at all municipal marinas.  -ongoing 
 
The Southside Marina has excellent facilities (showers and restrooms, lounge and 
meeting rooms, picnic areas, etc) for its boaters.  Similar quality facilities should be 
provided to all other Municipal Marinas.   
 
The City should move forward expeditiously with the construction of a new facilities   
building at the Northside Marina. Support use of grant funding to replace the existing 
facility. 
 
The City should upgrade and expand the restroom/shower facilities at the Museum and 
Black River Park Marinas, adding a lounge area.  These are likely to be long term 
projects.   
 
At Black River Park Marina and the Museum Marina, add a roof and screen walls to the 
new deck.  All facilities should be handicap accessible.  Boaters should be surveyed 
first to determine if this meets their needs. 
 
Promote availability of bicycles for boater use at the municipal marinas. 
 
 

37

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



C. Infrastructure 
 
1. Develop a Capital Improvement Plan 
 
A capital improvement plan should be developed for each of the marinas. The Harbor 
Commission should review the plan and identify projects that it would like to see 
completed.  The plan should include a budget and timeline for such improvements. 
 
Annually review the River Maintenance capital improvement plan.  -ongoing 
 
2. Dinghy Docks and Paddle Craft Facilities 
 
Fully support the Pedestrian, Bicycle and Paddle Plan which was adopted by the City 
Council on 2/16/2009. Improve existing dinghy docks and access at the Dyckman 
bridge. 
 
http://www.south-
haven.com/csh%20folder/csh/Pages/Communications/PlansReportsStudies.html 
 
Clean out and trim Celery Pond creek to create a small craft launch site and dinghy 
dock.   
 
Add a dinghy dock at the Museum Marina. 
 
Try to design dinghy docks so they would be usable for a river launch service if one 
becomes available. 
 
3. Harborwalk  
 
Complete the Harborwalk to include signage, lighting, benches, landscaping etc.   
 
Find and analyze the original plan for the Harborwalk to determine if the plan has been 
fully implemented.  If it has not continue implementing the plan.   
 
Improvements are needed on the public easements through Mariner’s Dockage and 
Pier’s End Cove.   
 
Complete Harborwalk to create a unified concept by adding better way finding signs, 
paving materials, improve interpretative plaques etc.   
 
Encourage a cooperative maintenance agreement between the City and the Michigan 
Maritime Museum. 
 
4. Green Space/Views 
 

38

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda

http://www.south-haven.com/csh%20folder/csh/Pages/Communications/PlansReportsStudies.html
http://www.south-haven.com/csh%20folder/csh/Pages/Communications/PlansReportsStudies.html


The Commission recommends that the city retain and acquire, when available, 
adequate public space along waterfronts.  These areas should be maintained and 
developed for open green space and public access.   
 
5. Former Street Garage 
 
Add a sea wall extension and dinghy dock at the former street garage, encouraging 
natural sea walls.   
 
 
D. Planning 
 
1. Future Development and Impact on Safe Navigation  
 
The Harbor Commission supports a detailed Harbor study that would update existing 
material from the 2001 Smith Group JJR report. To accomplish this we need to hire a 
competent and professional consultant to determine the capacity of the Black River 
Harbor and to provide guidance for future policy and decision making with a 10 year 
outlook. 
 
The South Haven City Council should authorize a forward looking study of our Harbor to 
determine if additional slips and/or services are needed.  Is our Harbor at capacity 
(defined as its ability to safely handle its current usage)?  If not, how many additional 
boats can it handle given its current configuration?  Are additional slips needed?  If so, 
where should they be located?  If it is at capacity based upon current configuration, are 
there modifications that would permit increased capacity?   
 
Consider funding a comprehensive professional study.  The study should look at where 
are we and where do we want to be in the next 5 to 10 years.  This study should be 
delayed at this time due to the unusual economic conditions until a certain level of 
economic normalcy returns to the harbor.   In the interim, contact area schools, colleges 
and universities seeking their help with acquiring accurate data on size, quantity and 
frequency of use of vessels using the Black River.  Analyze the new numbers from the 
study with a focus on the last paragraph on page 4 of the JJR memorandum of 
4/23/2001 which discusses the capacity of the river based on channel widths. 
 
Additionally the needs assessment should look at existing facilities to determine if they 
currently serve our needs, how they could be modified to best serve our needs today 
and what needs to be changed to best serve our future needs?   
 
A process needs to be defined, created, promoted and followed setting development 
goals and criteria based on consideration of our harbor size, location and boating and 
community concerns. 
 
Continue to monitor and provide guidance on the new waterfront park extension east of 
the Steelheader’s fishing wall and its impact on safety and navigation 
 

39

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



Any additional waterfront development or development affecting the waterfront must be 
scrutinized very carefully, both before, during and after the planned construction.  In 
advance of any construction the impact upon the harbor (which includes the Black River 
to the City limits) by the project as well as the proposed methods of construction of the 
project (remember Sherman Hills) must be carefully examined and evaluated.  The 
impact on boat traffic (if, for example, additional slips are proposed) and the impact 
upon navigation must be evaluated.  Of concern is erosion of soils flowing into the river 
caused by poor and unsupervised developments. 
 
As proposals for the development are presented, the Harbor Commission will consider 
issues of need, safety, navigational hazards and environmental concerns and make 
appropriate recommendations.  
 
2. Development Approval Role 
 
All projects using harbor maintenance funds and all developments along the river 
should come before the Harbor Commission for their recommendation.  -ongoing 
 
Participate in any discussion regarding the Celery Pond property.  -ongoing 
 
The Harbor Commission should have a role in any changes that affect marinas, river or 
harbor.  -ongoing 
 
3. Natural Environment Preservation 
 
Allow for innovative development without totally eliminating the vegetation and public  
access in the Black River around the present canoe launch area. 
 
We need to be proactive on waterfront development for example Sherman Hills. The 
City needs to determine how the river needs to be protected when a development is 
proposed.    -ongoing 
 
Work with DNRE and other entities regarding environmental issues for the entire Black 
River Watershed.  -ongoing 
 
Encourage all marinas to achieve Clean Marina Status.  -ongoing 
 
4. Effects of Development and Loss of Marine Services  
 
Assess whether we have adequate marine services in the harbor, including fueling, haul 
out, storage, marine repair service, marine parts and supply, dockage (seasonal and 
transient) and pump out facilities.  If some services appear to be lacking, encourage 
private businesses to provide them.  If private businesses are unable to provide the 
services or stop providing needed services, consider municipal services. 
 
 

40

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



E. Funding  
 
1. Ongoing Dredging Project Funding 
Investigate other sources of revenue for dredging.    -ongoing 
 
Recommend an increase from 3% to 6% of marina revenues set aside for the River 
Maintenance budget. 
 
Recognize the need for additional funding for dredging and allocate some of the tax 
collection from the increased assessments of property and homes on the river for 
dredging.   
 
Request funding from the DDA to allocate toward harbor maintenance.  -ongoing 
 
Determine if the current method of calculating special assessments for dredging is 
equitable and or if changes are needed. 
 
2. Capital Improvement Plan 
 
The Commission duties include an annual review of this plan along with the Black River 
Maintenance document. As part of that review recommendations must be made in a 
timely manner. 
 
3. Harbor Budget Policies 
 
It is the duty of the Commission to review and make recommendations to the annual 
River Maintenance, Marina Fund and Black River Park budgets in a timely manner so 
they can be considered during the budget adoption process of the City Council.    -
ongoing 
 
All assessment categories should identify a budget and funding mechanism. Consider 
for example:  
 

• Future waterfront developments should be specifically assessed for their impact 
on the harbor. 

• Establish a broad based assessment (as broad as possible) to fund the 
maintenance of the harbor.   

• Analyze the current income from the operation of the Municipal Marinas and 
Public Launch site to get a full understanding of the usage and to determine an 
appropriate contribution to harbor maintenance. 

   
 
F. Marketing and Communication 
 
1. Emergency Communication 
 

41

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



Be in a position to communicate safety information for ongoing and emergency issues 
with marina owners, managers and users.  Develop ways to communicate safety 
information with boaters.  -ongoing 
 
Establish an email list for contact with boaters and harbor stakeholders. 
 
Install bulletin boards at the boat launch. 
 
2. Marina Management 
 
Evaluate management of municipal marinas.  -ongoing 
 
There needs to be more communication with transient and seasonal boaters using 
marina facilities and the boat launch.  Create and distribute feedback cards to survey 
customer service and desired amenities.  Do customer satisfaction surveys on a regular 
basis and conduct appropriate follow up. 
 
Include welcome packages with information on the City and local businesses, gifts and 
coupons.  Inform boaters where they can rent bicycles and vehicles.   
 
Install informational bulletin boards at all municipal marinas to inform boaters and the 
public of events, phone numbers, tourist information etc.   
 
Improve on-going staff training.  -ongoing 
 
Encourage development of a marina and harbor marketing plan on an annual basis.  -
ongoing 
  
The Commission needs to schedule annual meetings at the marinas to hear concerns 
and suggestions for improvements of services.   
 
3. River Stakeholders 
 
Communicate with the City and its boards and commissions as well as the DEQ, DNR, 
Drain Commission, farmers, boaters etc. to ensure we maintain a high quality harbor, 
including water quality issues.  
 
Promote the Clean Marina program to harbor marinas and as a marketing approach for 
the harbor. 
 
Use bulletin boards at marinas and boat launch to post Harbor Commission meeting 
schedule, agendas and Harbor Commission contact information. 
 
4. Survey and Feedback Procedures 
 

42

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



Survey boaters and slip owners to determine what services they want and how it should 
be provided.  Gather feedback and implement changes on dredging and other issues. 
 
Survey all boaters, slip owners and marina owners regarding river maintenance and 
safety issues.  Use an email list to inform and listen to river stakeholders. 

43

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



Capital Improvement Prioritization

Marina Fund Projects

27 Maritime Museum Dock Repair
26 Marina Electric Upgrades, North Side, South Side, Maritime Marina
24 Maritime Marina Restroom Replacement and Pavilion
22 Dinghy Docks and Paddle Craft Facilities Throughout Harbor
19 Harbor Signage, No Wake, Welcome, Municipal Marina Names
14 Harborwalk, Signage, Landscaping, Appearance Upgrades
7 Cruise Ship Dock
5 Floating Dinghy Docks in Marinas

Black River Park Projects

20 New BRP Marina Restroom (near Docks)
19 Fish Cleaning Station and Entrance Drive
14 BRP Street Garage Site Fishing Access
14 Dunkley Street Parking Lot (near Fish Cleaning Station)
10 BRP Parking Lot Repaving
7 BRP Kayak Launch, Pavilion

River Maintenance Projects

20 Dredging Capital Plan Funding (Save Funds for Next Major Dredging)
16 Land For Dredge Spoil Placement
16 Annual Maintenance Dredging, Black River
14 Fund Conservation District Projects to Minimize Erosion and Contaminants in River
11 Sedimentation Traps
7 Friends Goodwill Channel

44

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN 
VAN BUREN AND ALLEGAN COUNTIES, MICHIGAN 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-xx 

 
A RESOLUTION SETTING THE SEASONAL 

AND TRANSIENT SLIP RATES AT SOUTH HAVEN MUNICIPAL MARINAS 
 

 Minutes of a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of South Haven, Van Buren 
and Allegan Counties, Michigan, held in the City Hall, 539 Phoenix Street, South Haven, 
Michigan 49090 on    , 2014 at 7:30 p.m. local time. 
 

PRESENT:            
 
ABSENT:            
 

 The following preamble and resolution was offered by Member     and 
supported by Member   . 
 
WHEREAS, the Michigan State Waterways Commission establishes recommended fees for 
both transient and seasonal moorings for state governing Municipal Marinas; and 
 
WHEREAS, the local units of government must maintain rate structures at or above for transient 
and seasonal rates in compliance with terms and conditions of previously executed grant-in-aid 
contracts for state grant assistance in facility development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Harbor Commission has reviewed and recommends the following rates; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council concurs with the recommendations as forwarded to the Council by 
the Harbor Commission.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall take effect upon passage by the City 
Council. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the South Haven Municipal Marina and Boat 
Launch Rates for 2015 be set as follows: 
 
Seasonal Dock Rates 
 
The following seasonal dock rates will be in effect at the City operated facilities: 
 

Slip #'s   Slip Size in Ft.  Amount 
       

Northside Marina      
41-52, 65-68  30   $2,915 
57 thru 64   35   $3,395 
88-96   38   $3,725 
1 thru 10   40   $3,950 
53-56   45   $4,390 
11-40, 83-87  50   $4,925 
69 thru 82   60   $5,790 

45

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



       
       
 
Museum Marina      
1 thru 30   40   $3,795 
       
Black River Park      
1 thru 20   24   $1,655 
21 thru 62   30   $1,870 
       
Boats greater than the rate assigned will be charged per  $115 
additional foot       
       
Reservation Fee $5.00 
       
Black River Park Seasonal Launch Pass  $100 
Age 65 and over Seasonal Launch Pass  $75 
Black River Park 10 Launch Tokens   $50 
Black River Park Daily Launch    $7 

 
The following discounts may be applied to seasonal boater fees, subject to approval of the 
marina manager: 
 
A first year discount of $500 may be offered to new seasonal boaters. 
 
Shallow draft slips or unused slips may be rented for use of dinghies and small boats at 
$1,000 per dinghy/boat per season. 
 
If, after the deadline for payment for the season, there appears to be a lack of boats to fill 
longer slips, the marina manager may rent slips to shorter boats at a rate equal to the boat 
length plus one half the difference of the slip length and boat length. 
 
The marina manager may request in writing from the city manager special rates to improve 
occupancy.  The marina manager may apply those rates after receiving written approval from 
the city manager. 
 
Transient Slip Fees 
 
Transient slip fees at the North Side Marina, South Side Marina and Museum Marina are the 
current year rates approved by the Michigan State Waterways Commission, Column D. 
 
Transient slip fees at the Black River Park Marina are the current year rates approved by the 
Michigan State Waterways Commission, Column C. 
 
During the period from July 1 to September 1, transient slip fees are increased by 10% for 
Friday and Saturday overnights. 
 
Transient Discount Rates 
 
The following discounts may be applied to transient boater fees, subject to approval of the 
marina manager: 

46

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



 
a. Pre-Memorial Day and Post-Labor Day Special, stay 4 nights get 3 nights free. 
 
b. After July 15, a Remainder of Season discount will be made available.  A seasonal slip may 
be rented for the remainder of the season, with the fee calculated as the number of days 
remaining until October 15 times the minimum Waterways Transient rate (column 1) for the 
length of boat. 
 
Short Term Docking 
 
The marina manager is authorized to allow short term dockage of vessels for a period of less 
than eight hours when dock area is available.  The short term dockage rate is $0.50 per foot. 
 
Marina and Boat Launch Facility Commercial Use 
 
Commercial use of marinas and Black River Park Boat Launch is subject to the City of South 
Haven Marina and Boat Launch Facility Commercial Use Policy, as approved by South Haven 
City Council. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this resolution shall take effect upon passage by the City 
Council. 
 
RECORD OF VOTE: 
 
 Yeas:              
 
 Nays:              
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
              
        Robert Burr, Mayor 
 
 
              
        Amanda Morgan, City Clerk 

47

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



1

Paul Vandenbosch

From: O'Bryan, Thomas W LRE <Thomas.W.OBryan@usace.army.mil>
Sent: Tuesday, August 26, 2014 11:51 AM
To: Paul Vandenbosch
Cc: Wright, David L LRE; Tapp, James D (Jim) LRE; Schropp, Chris C LRE; Gerczak, David M 

LRE
Subject: RE: South Haven condition survey (UNCLASSIFIED)

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
Caveats: NONE 
 
Paul,  
 
At this time we do not have any funds in the FY15 Presidents budget for dredging in South Haven.  As you most likely 
know we are having funding issues for shallow draft harbors, (South Haven being one of those).  
 
I have talked to upper management in the Detroit District office and would say likelihood of getting funding via a work 
plan (if there is such a thing next FY) is pretty low. 
 
If the City of South Haven would like to enter into a contributed funds agreement with us under which they provide their 
funding to the USACE for us to contract to dredge then we should start that process very soon as that does take some 
time to ensure the work could be contracted for and completed prior to the cities event.   
 
We have done this before with other shallow draft harbor communities and have been successful. I am sure you would 
like to know how much it would costs, I would use a ballpark of $10 per cubic yard, the quantity in South Haven at this 
time to project depth of 14 feet is 16,000 cys on sheet one and project depth of 12 feet on sheet 2 at 17,000 cys for a 
total dredge quantity of 35,000 cys at $10 per cy would be $350,000. Obviously we can always dredge just to your needs 
and not all of the federal channel. I am estimating high just so there are no surprises later.  We have gotten some bids 
this year for about $7 per cy but have to include mod and demob.  
 
Another solution is for the City to obtain a dredging permit for the Federal Navigation Channel and contract it thru your 
own processes.  This has also been done by shallow draft communities.  Your next question would be how much saving 
would that amount to.  The contract may be the same dollar amount but the USCAE will have a fee to do this work which 
would include preparing the contract documents, advertising, awarding, doing prior an after surveys, and administering 
the contract documents. 
 
Let us know how you would like to proceed and feel free to call me to discuss. 
 
 
Tom O'Bryan 
616‐842‐5510 ext 25523 
Cell 616‐340‐5795 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Paul Vandenbosch [mailto:pvandenbosch@south‐haven.com]  
Sent: Friday, August 22, 2014 10:08 AM 
To: O'Bryan, Thomas W LRE 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] RE: South Haven condition survey (UNCLASSIFIED) 

48

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



2

 
Tom; 
 
In 2015 South Haven will be hosting the finish of the Queen's Cup, the South Shore Yacht Club's annual sailboat race. 
 
In order to be prepared for this event, the City of South Haven would like to know if there is an opportunity to contract 
with the Army Corps to perform Spring 2015 maintenance dredging in the approach and channel of the South Haven 
pierheads. 
 
Our main concern is the depth in Lake Michigan just outside the pierheads, however the channel may also be an issue. 
 
The event starts on June 26, 2015.  Our goal would be to have the approach dredged out to the maintenance depth of 
14 foot in the area where breaking waves can become a problem near the pierheads.   However, based on Spring 2015 
soundings we may have additional areas of concern. 
 
Our budget is somewhat limited but we are very motivated to make sure there are no problems for this event. 
 
Is there a possibility that we can contract with the Army Corps to have work performed in Spring 2015? 
 
Paul VandenBosch 
Assistant City Manager/Harbormaster 
 
City of South Haven 
pvandenbosch@south‐haven.com 
269‐637‐0775 Desk 
269‐637‐5319 Fax 
539 Phoenix Street 
South Haven, MI 49090 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: O'Bryan, Thomas W LRE [mailto:Thomas.W.O'Bryan@usace.army.mil]  
Sent: Tuesday, April 29, 2014 8:59 AM 
To: Paul Vandenbosch; Brian Dissette 
Cc: Schropp, Chris C LRE; Bouwhuis, Brian J LRE 
Subject: FW: South Haven condition survey (UNCLASSIFIED) 
 
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
Caveats: NONE 
 
Attached is the condition survey that was completed at South Haven on 25 April 2014.  It is also posted on our web site.
 
Tom O'Bryan 
616‐842‐5510 ext 25523 
Cell 616‐340‐5795 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Schmidt, Eric D LRE  
Sent: Tuesday, April 29, 2014 7:11 AM 

49

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda



3

To: Holly, Donald D LRE; Cusimano, Derek H LRE; Tapp, James D (Jim) LRE; Mahoney, Mollie H (Mollie) LRE; Kempisty, Bill 
J LRE; Imbrunone, Jon T LRE; Kelley, Crystal A LRE; Rose, Steven S LRE; Wright, David L LRE; O'Bryan, Thomas W LRE; 
Schropp, Chris C LRE 
Subject: South Haven condition surevy (UNCLASSIFIED) 
 
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
Caveats: NONE 
 
Good Morning, 
 
Attached is the condition survey for South Haven harbor, conducted on April 25th, 2014. 
 
v/r 
Eric Schmidt 
 
Civil Engineer Technician  
Army Corps of Engineers  
Lake Michigan Area Office  
307 S Harbor Dr  
Grand Haven, MI 49417  
(616) 842‐5510 ext. 25528  
 
 
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
Caveats: NONE 
 
 
 
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
Caveats: NONE 
 
 
 
Classification: UNCLASSIFIED 
Caveats: NONE 
 
 

50

September 09, 2014 
Harbor Commission  
Regular Meeting Agenda


	Harbor Agenda, September 16, 2014
	August 19 Minutes
	Reports
	Dyckman Bridge Reconstruction
	Capital Improvement Plan
	Strategic Plan
	Marina Rates
	Pierhead Dredging
	2014-09-05 Five Year Cap Imp Plan.pdf
	Cash Needs




